Registration No. 333-\_\_\_

U.S. SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION Washington, D.C. 20549

## FORM S-3

**REGISTRATION STATEMENT UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933** 

# **JAKKS PACIFIC, INC.**

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

## Delaware

(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization) **95-4527222** (I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)

22619 PACIFIC COAST HIGHWAY, MALIBU, CALIFORNIA 90265, (310) 456-7799 (Address, including zip code, and telephone number, including area code, of registrant's principal executive offices)

> Jack Friedman Chairman JAKKS Pacific, Inc. 22619 Pacific Coast Highway Malibu, California 90265 (310) 456-7799

(Name, address, including zip code, and telephone number, including area code, of agent for service)

Copy to:

Saul Kaszovitz, Esq. Feder, Kaszovitz, Isaacson, Weber, Skala, Bass & Rhine LLP 750 Lexington Avenue New York, New York 10022-1200 (212) 888-8200 Fax: (212) 888-7776 Approximate date of commencement of proposed sale to the public: As soon as practicable after the effective date of this Registration Statement. o

If the only securities being registered on this Form are being offered pursuant to dividend or interest reinvestment plans, please check the following box. o

If any of the securities being registered on this Form are to be offered on a delayed or continuous basis pursuant to Rule 415 under the Securities Act of 1933, other than securities offered only in connection with dividend or interest reinvestment plans, check the following box.

If this Form is filed to register additional securities for an offering pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act, please check the following box and list the Securities Act registration statement number of the earlier effective registration statement for the same offering. o

If this Form is a post-effective amendment filed pursuant to Rule 462(c) under the Securities Act, check the following box and list the Securities Act registration statement number of the earlier effective registration statement for the same offering. o

If delivery of the prospectus is expected to be made pursuant to Rule 434, please check the following box. o

## CALCULATION OF REGISTRATION FEE

Title of Each Class of Securities To Be Registered	Amount To Be Registered	Proposed Maximum Offering Price Per Unit (1)	Proposed Maximum Aggregate Offering Price(1)	Amount of Registration Fee
Common Stock, par value \$.001 per share	774,754 Shares	\$19.56(2)	\$15,154,189	\$1,920.04

(1) Estimated solely for the purpose of computing the amount of the registration fee pursuant to Rule 457(c).

(2) Pursuant to Rule 457(c), represents the average of the high and low sales prices of our common stock for September 1, 2004 as reported on the Nasdaq National Market System.

The registrant hereby amends this registration statement on such date or dates as may be necessary to delay its effective date until the registrant shall file a further amendment which specifically states that this registration statement shall thereafter become effective in accordance with Section 8(a) of the Securities Act or until the registration statement shall become effective on such date as the Commission, acting pursuant to said Section 8(a), may determine.

ii

THE INFORMATION IN THIS PROSPECTUS IS NOT COMPLETE AND MAY BE CHANGED. WE MAY NOT SELL THESE SECURITIES UNTIL THE REGISTRATION STATEMENT FILED WITH THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION IS EFFECTIVE. THIS PROSPECTUS IS NOT AN OFFER TO SELL THESE SECURITIES AND IT IS NOT SOLICITING ANY OFFER TO BUY THESE SECURITIES IN ANY STATE WHERE THE OFFER OR SALE IS NOT PERMITTED.

## SUBJECT TO COMPLETION, DATED SEPTEMBER 8, 2004

#### PROSPECTUS

#### 774,754 SHARES

#### JAKKS PACIFIC, INC.

#### **COMMON STOCK**

This prospectus relates to 774,754 shares of our common stock, par value \$0.001 that may be sold from time to time by the selling security holders listed under the caption "Selling Security Holders" on page 16. We will not receive any of the proceeds from the sale of the common stock. See "Use of Proceeds."

The shares are being registered to permit the selling security holders to sell the shares from time to time in the public market. The selling security holders may determine the prices at which they will sell the common stock, which prices may be at market prices prevailing at the time of such sale or some other price. The selling security holders may sell the common stock through ordinary brokerage transactions, directly to marketmakers of our shares or through any other means described in the section "Plan of Distribution" beginning on page 18. We cannot assure you that the selling security holders will sell all or a portion of the common stock offered under this prospectus.

Our common stock is traded on the Nasdaq National Market System under the symbol "JAKK." On September 2, 2004, the last reported sale price of our common stock on the Nasdaq National Market System was \$19.76 per share.

## INVESTING IN OUR COMMON STOCK INVOLVES RISKS. SEE "RISK FACTORS" ON PAGE 8.

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities commission has approved or disapproved of these securities or determined if this prospectus is truthful and complete. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

The date of this Prospectus is \_\_\_\_\_, 2004

#### TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Page
<u>Summary</u>	3
Risk Factors	8
Forward Looking Statements	16
Use of Proceeds	16
Selling Security Holders	16
Plan of Distribution	18
Legal Matters	20
Independent Auditors	21
Incorporation of Documents by Reference	21
Where You Can Find More Information	22
Disclosure of Commission Position on Indemnification For Securities Act Liabilities	22
Exhibit 4.1	E-4.1-1
Exhibit 5.1	E-5.1-1
Exhibit 23.1	E-23.1-1
Exhibit 23.2	E-23.2-1
Exhibit 23.3	E-23.3-1
Exhibit 24.1	E-24.1-1

#### **ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS**

This prospectus constitutes part of a registration statement on Form S-3 that we filed with the SEC through what is known as the shelf registration process. Under this process, any selling security holder may sell the securities described in the prospectus in one or more offerings. This prospectus provides you with a general description of the securities the selling security holders may offer. A prospectus supplement may also add, update or change information contained in this prospectus. You should read both this prospectus and any prospectus supplement together with additional information described under the heading "Where You Can Find More Information."

In connection with this offering, no person is authorized to give any information or to make any representations not contained or incorporated by reference in this prospectus. If information is given or representations are made, you may not rely on that information or representations as having been authorized by us. This prospectus is neither an offer to sell nor a solicitation of an offer to buy any securities other than those registered by this prospectus, nor is it an offer to sell or a solicitation of an offer to buy securities where an offer or solicitation would be unlawful. You may not imply from the delivery of this prospectus, nor from any sale made under this prospectus, that our affairs are unchanged since the date of this prospectus or that the information contained in this prospectus is correct as of any time after the date of this prospectus. The information contained and incorporated by reference in this prospectus and any accompanying prospectus supplement is accurate only as of the date of this prospectus or the prospectus supplement or the date of the document incorporated by reference, as the case may be, regardless of the time of delivery of the prospectus.

We are not making any representation to any purchaser of the common stock regarding the legality of an investment in the common stock by such purchaser under any legal, investment or similar laws or regulations. You should not consider any information in this prospectus to be legal, business or tax advice. You should consult your own attorney, business advisor and tax advisor for legal, business and tax advice regarding an investment in our securities.

## SUMMARY

This summary highlights information contained elsewhere in this prospectus. You should carefully read the entire prospectus, including "Risk Factors" beginning on page 8, before investing in the common stock. When we use the terms "JAKKS," "we," "us," or "our," we are referring to JAKKS Pacific, Inc. and its subsidiaries, unless the context requires otherwise or we expressly state otherwise in this prospectus.

## **JAKKS Pacific, Inc.**

#### **Our Business**

We are a leading multi-line, multi-brand toy company that designs, develops, produces and markets toys and related consumer products. We focus our business on acquiring or licensing well-recognized trademarks and brand names with long product histories (evergreen brands). We seek to acquire these evergreen brands because we believe they are less subject to market fads or trends. Our products are typically simpler, lower-priced toys and accessories and include:

- Action figures and accessories including licensed characters, principally based on the World Wrestling Entertainment ™ ("WWE") and the Dragon Ball® franchises, and toy vehicles, including Road Champs® die-cast collectibles, MXS extreme sports, remote control vehicles and Remco<sup>™</sup> toy vehicles and role-play toys and accessories;
- Craft, activity and stationery products, including Flying Colors® activity sets, compounds, playsets and lunch boxes and Colorworkshop® craft products such as Blopens® and Vivid Velvet®, and Pentech® writing instruments, stationery and activity products;
- Child Guidance® infant and pre-school electronic toys, toy foam puzzle mats and blocks, activity sets, outdoor products, plush toys and slumber bags;
- Seasonal toys and leisure products, including kites, *Funnoodle*® pool toys, and *Storm*<sup>™</sup> water guns;
- Toy candy through our creation of *Tongue Tape*<sup>™</sup>;
- Electronic products, including *Laser Challenge*<sup>™</sup> and TV games;
- Junior sports, including *Disney*® products, *Gaksplat*™ and *Storm*™; and
- Fashion and mini dolls and related accessories, including Disney Princesses sold in The Disney Store.

We continually review the marketplace to identify and evaluate evergreen brands that we believe have the potential for significant growth. We generate growth within these brands by:

• creating innovative products under established brand names;



- focusing our marketing efforts to enhance consumer recognition and retailer interest;
- linking them with our portfolio of evergreen brands;
- adding new items to the branded product lines that we expect will enjoy greater popularity; and
- adding new features and improving the functionality of products in the line.

In addition to developing our proprietary brands and marks, we license marks such as *WWE*<sup>TM</sup>, *Nickelodeon*®, *Rugrats*®, *SpongeBob SquarePants*®, *Dora the Explorer*®, *Blue's Clues*®, *Mickey Mouse, Winnie the Pooh*®, *Hello Kitty*® and *NASCAR*®. Licensing enables us to use these high-profile marks at a lower cost than we would incur if we purchased these marks or developed comparable marks on our own. By licensing marks, we have access to a far greater range of marks than would be available for purchase. We also license technology produced by unaffiliated inventors and product developers to improve the design and functionality of our products.

We have capitalized on our relationship with WWE by obtaining an exclusive worldwide license for our joint venture with THQ Inc. ("THQ"), which develops, produces, manufactures and markets video games based on WWE characters and themes. Since the joint venture's first title release in 1999, it has released 23 new titles. We have received approximately \$42 million in preferred returns as our profit from the joint venture through June 30, 2004.

Through the Toymax International, Inc. acquisition we also added toy brand names such as *Laser Challenge*<sup>TM</sup> and *Creepy Crawlers*<sup>®</sup> to our brand portfolio. In addition, pool-related products branded under the name *Funnoodle*<sup>®</sup> and kites branded under the name *Go Fly a Kite*<sup>®</sup> further diversified our portfolio with products popular in the spring and summer seasons.

Through the assets we acquired from Trendmasters<sup>®</sup>, Inc. ("Trendmasters") which added to our portfolio *The Storm*<sup>®</sup> brand of water guns, gliders and junior sports toys, seasonal products for Halloween, Christmas and Easter, and vehicles, action figures, dolls and playsets under multiple brands.

In May 2003 we acquired from P&M Products USA, Inc. and an affiliated United Kingdom company, P&M Products Limited (collectively, "P&M") the *Blopen*<sup>®</sup>, *Blitzer*<sup>™</sup>, *Vivid Velvet*<sup>®</sup> and *SmArty Paints*<sup>®</sup> line of products which we incorporated into our *Flying Colors*<sup>®</sup> and *Pentech*<sup>®</sup> lines.

In June 2004, we acquired substantially all of the assets of the Play Along group of companies which manufactured traditional toys, including plush, dolls, action figures, and preschool and construction toys and held a number of licenses including *Cabbage Patch Kids*® for dolls, *Care Bears*® for plush and preschool learning, *Teletubbies*® for preschool and playsets and DC Comic's® *Batman*® and *Justice League of America*® for construction toys.

Most of our current products are relatively simple and inexpensive. In 2003, approximately 70.0% of our revenue came from products priced at ten dollars or less at retail. We believe that these products have enduring appeal and are less subject to general economic

conditions, toy product fads and trends, and changes in retail distribution channels. As of June 30, 2004, we had over 3,400 products in approximately 21 product categories. In addition, the simplicity of these products enables us to choose among a wider range of manufacturers and affords us greater flexibility in product design, pricing and marketing. Our product development process typically takes from three to nine months from concept to production and shipment to our customers. We believe that many licensors and retailers recognize and reward our ability to bring product to market faster and more efficiently than many of our competitors.

We sell our products through our in-house sales staff and independent sales representatives to toy and mass-market retail chain stores, department stores, office supply stores, drug and grocery store chains, club stores, toy specialty stores and wholesalers. The *Road Champs, Flying Colors* and *Pentech* products also are sold to smaller hobby shops, specialty retailers and corporate accounts, among others. Our five largest customers are Wal-Mart, Kmart, Toys 'R' Us, Target, and Kay Bee Toys, which collectively accounted for approximately 57.7% of our net sales in 2003. We have over 2,000 other customers, none of which accounted for more than 2.0% of our net sales in 2003.

## **Our Growth Strategy**

The execution of our growth strategy has resulted in increased revenues and earnings. In 2003, we generated net sales and EBITDA of \$315.8 million and \$35.0 million, respectively. Key elements of our growth strategy include:

*Expand Core Products.* We manage our existing and new brands through strong product development initiatives, including introducing new products, modifying existing products and extending existing product lines. Our product designers strive to develop new products or product lines to offer added technological, aesthetic and functional improvements to our existing product lines. We expanded the use of real-scan technology in our action toys and we incorporated articulated joints and a flexible rubberized coating to enhance the life-like look and feel of these action toys. These innovations produce higher quality and better likenesses of the representative characters.

*Enter New Product Categories.* We will continue to use our extensive experience in the toy and related industries to evaluate products and licenses in new product categories and to develop additional product lines. We have entered the toy candy category through our creation of *Tongue Tape*, commenced marketing of licensed classic video games for simple plug-in use with television sets and expanded into slumber bags through the licensing of this category from our current licensors, such as Nickelodeon.

*Pursue Strategic Acquisitions.* We intend to supplement our internal growth rate with selected strategic acquisitions. Since our inception in 1995, we have successfully completed and integrated twelve acquisitions of companies and trademarks. These include our acquisitions of Justin Products, Road Champs, Remco, Child Guidance, Berk, Flying Colors, Pentech, Kidz Biz, Toymax®, Trendmasters®, P&M and Play Along. We will continue focusing our acquisition strategy on businesses or brands that have compatible product lines and offer valuable retail shelf space, trademarks or brands. In December 2002, we signed a three-year master toy license for *Dragon Ball*®, *Dragon Ball*Z® and *Dragon Ball GT*®.

In 2003 we began to develop, manufacture and distribute action figures and action figure accessories based on these top-rated animated series, and continue to innovate and enhance the product offerings under this license.

Acquire Additional Character and Product Licenses. We have acquired the rights to use many familiar corporate, trade and brand names and logos from third parties that we use with our primary trademarks and brands. Currently, we have license agreements with the WWE, Nickelodeon, Disney, and Warner Bros.®, as well as with the licensors of the many popular licensed children's characters previously mentioned, among others. We intend to continue to pursue new licenses from these entertainment and media companies and other licensors. We also intend to continue to purchase additional inventions and product concepts through our existing network of product developers.

*Expand International Sales*. We believe that foreign markets, especially Europe, Australia, Canada, Latin America and Asia, offer us significant growth opportunities. In 2003, our sales generated outside the United States were approximately \$44.7 million, or 14.2% of total net sales. We intend to continue to expand our international sales by capitalizing on our experience and our relationships with foreign distributors and retailers. In addition, in December 2001, we acquired Kidz Biz for its distribution channels in the United Kingdom and surrounding territories. We expect these initiatives to continue to contribute to our international growth in 2004.

*Capitalize On Our Operating Efficiencies.* We believe that our current infrastructure and low-overhead operating model can accommodate significant growth without a proportionate increase in our operating and administrative expenses, thereby increasing our operating margins.

## **Our Corporate Information**

We were formed as a Delaware corporation in 1995. Our principal executive offices are located at 22619 Pacific Coast Highway, Malibu, California 90265. Our telephone number is (310) 456-7799. Our Internet website address is www.jakkspacific.com. The contents of our website are not part of this prospectus.

## The Offering

Issuer	JAKKS Pacific, Inc.	
Seller	One or more of the selling security holders. For information about the selling security holders, see "Selling Security Holders." We are not selling the securities.	
Securities Offered	774,754 shares of our common stock, par value \$.001.	
Common Stock to be Outstanding after the Offering <sup>(1)</sup>	26,231,706 shares	
Registration Rights	We have agreed to use our best efforts keep the shelf registration statement, of which this prospectus forms a part, effective until the earlier to occur of (i) the date on which the registered shares are disposed of in accordance with this prospectus or (ii) for Messrs. Emby, Foreman and Geller, the first anniversary of the effective date of the registration statement of which this prospectus forms a part, and for Messrs. Lipman and Nimmo, the date when their registered shares can be immediately sold to the public without registration or restriction.	
Trading	Our common stock trades on the Nasdaq National Market System under the symbol "JAKK."	
Use of Proceeds	We will not receive any of the proceeds from the sale by the selling security holders of the shares of common stock.	
<ul> <li>Does not include (1) 4,900,000 shares underlying our convertible notes; (2) 100,000 shares underlying our outstanding warrants; and (3)2,101,434 shares underlying our outstanding options.</li> </ul>		

## **RISK FACTORS**

An investment in the shares of common stock involves significant risks. In addition to reviewing other information in this prospectus, you should carefully consider the following factors before deciding to purchase the shares of common stock. The risks and uncertainties we have described are not the only ones we face. Additional risks and uncertainties not currently known to us or that we currently deem immaterial may impair our business operations. If any of the following risks actually occur, our business, results of operations and financial condition could be materially adversely affected and you might lose all or part of your investment.

#### We are subject to changing consumer preferences and a substantial portion of our annual revenue depends on new product introductions.

Our business and operating results depend largely upon the appeal of our products. Our continued success in the toy industry will depend on our ability to redesign, restyle and extend our existing core products and product lines as consumer preferences evolve, and to develop, introduce and gain customer acceptance of new products and product lines. Several trends in recent years have presented challenges for the toy industry, including:

The phenomenon of children outgrowing toys at younger ages, particularly in favor of interactive and high technology products;

- Increasing use of technology;
- Shorter life cycles for individual products; and
- Higher consumer expectations for product quality, functionality and value.

We cannot assure you that:

- Our current products will continue to be popular with consumers;
- The product lines or products that we introduce will achieve any significant degree of market acceptance; or
- The life cycles of our products will be sufficient to permit us to recover licensing, design, manufacturing, marketing and other costs associated with those products.

#### We are subject to changing popularity of our products.

The success of many of our character-related and theme-related products depends on the popularity of characters in movies, television programs, live wrestling exhibitions, auto racing events and other media. We cannot assure you that:

• media associated with our character-related and theme-related product lines will be released at the times we expect or will be successful;

## **Table of Contents**

- the success of media associated with our existing character-related and theme-related product lines will result in substantial promotional value to our products;
- we will be successful in renewing licenses upon expiration on terms that are favorable to us; or
- we will be successful in obtaining licenses to produce new character-related and theme-related products in the future.

## There are risks associated with our license agreements.

• Our current licenses require us to pay minimum royalties

Sales of products under trademarks or trade or brand names licensed from others account for substantially all of our net sales. Product licenses allow us to capitalize on characters, designs, concepts and inventions owned by others or developed by toy inventors and designers. Our license agreements generally require us to make specified minimum royalty payments, even if we fail to sell a sufficient number of units to cover these amounts. In addition, under certain of our license agreements, if we fail to achieve certain prescribed sales targets, we may be unable to retain or renew these licenses.

• Some of our licenses are restricted as to use

Under some of our license agreements, including WWE, Nickelodeon and NASCAR, the licensors have the right to review and approve our use of their licensed products, designs or materials before we may make any sales. If a licensor refuses to permit our use of any licensed property in the way we propose, or if their review process is delayed, our development or sale of new products could be impeded.

• New licenses are difficult and expensive to obtain

Our continued success will depend substantially on our ability to obtain additional licenses. Intensive competition exists for desirable licenses in our industry. We cannot assure you that we will be able to secure or renew significant licenses on terms acceptable to us. In addition, as we add licenses, the need to fund additional royalty advances and guaranteed minimum royalty payments may strain our cash resources.

• A limited number of licensors account for a large portion of our net sales

We derive a significant portion of our net sales from a limited number of licensors. If one or more of these licensors were to terminate or fail to renew our license or not grant us new licenses, our business, financial condition and results of operations could be adversely affected.

#### The toy industry is highly competitive.

The toy industry is highly competitive. Globally, certain of our competitors have financial and strategic advantages over us, including:

- greater financial resources;
- larger sales, marketing and product development departments;
- stronger name recognition;
- longer operating histories; and
- greater economies of scale.

In addition, the toy industry has no significant barriers to entry. Competition is based primarily on the ability to design and develop new toys, to procure licenses for popular characters and trademarks and to successfully market products. Many of our competitors offer similar products or alternatives to our products. Our competitors have obtained and are likely to continue to obtain licenses that overlap our licenses with respect to products, geographic areas and markets. We cannot assure you that we will be able to obtain adequate shelf space in retail stores to support our existing products or to expand our products and product lines or that we will be able to continue to compete effectively against current and future competitors.

## Our video game joint venture with THQ is subject to numerous risks and uncertainties.

In addition to the risks relating to us and the toy industry, our joint venture with THQ faces the following risks:

- The joint venture depends entirely on a single license, which gives the venture exclusive worldwide rights to produce and market video games based on World Wrestling Entertainment characters and themes. The popularity of professional wrestling, in general, and World Wrestling Entertainment, in particular, is subject to changing consumer tastes and demands. The relative popularity of professional wrestling has fluctuated significantly in recent years. A decline in the popularity of World Wrestling Entertainment could adversely affect the joint venture's and our business, financial condition and results of operations.
- The joint venture relies on hardware manufacturers and THQ's non-exclusive licenses with them for the right to publish titles for their platforms and for the manufacture of the joint venture's titles. If THQ's manufacturing licenses were to terminate and the joint venture could not otherwise obtain these licenses from other manufacturers, the joint venture would be unable to publish additional titles for these manufacturers' platforms, which would materially adversely affect the joint venture's and our business, financial condition and results of operations.
- The software industry has experienced periods of significant growth in consumer interest, followed by periods in which growth has substantially declined. The joint venture's sales of software titles depend, among other factors, on the popularity and unit sales of platforms generally, as well as on the relative popularity and unit sales of various platforms. The relative popularity of certain platforms has fluctuated significantly in recent years. An unexpected decline in the popularity of a particular platform can be expected to have a material adverse affect on consumer demand for titles released or to be released by the joint venture for such platforms.

- The joint venture's failure to timely develop titles for new platforms that achieve significant market acceptance, to maintain net sales that are
  commensurate with product development costs or to maintain compatibility between its personal computer CD-ROM titles and the related hardware and
  operating systems would adversely affect the joint venture's and our business, financial condition and results of operations.
- In general, THQ controls the day-to-day operations of the joint venture and all of its product development and production operations. Accordingly, the joint venture relies exclusively on THQ to manage these operations effectively. THQ's failure to effectively manage the joint venture would have a material adverse effect on the joint venture's and our business and results of operations. Furthermore, we are dependent upon THQ's ability to manage cash flows of the joint venture. If THQ is required to retain cash for operations, or because of statutory or contractual restrictions, we may not receive cash payments for our share of profits, on a timely basis, or at all.

### We may not be able to sustain or manage our rapid growth.

We have experienced rapid growth in our product lines resulting in higher net sales over the last six years, which was achieved through acquisitions of businesses, products and licenses. As a result, comparing our period-to-period operating results may not be meaningful and results of operations from prior periods may not be indicative of future results. We cannot assure you that we will continue to experience growth in, or maintain our present level of, net sales.

Our growth strategy calls for us to continuously develop and diversify our toy business by acquiring other companies, entering into additional license agreements, refining our product lines and expanding into international markets, which will place additional demands on our management, operational capacity and financial resources and systems. The increased demand on management may necessitate our recruitment and retention of qualified management personnel. We cannot assure you that we will be able to recruit and retain qualified personnel or expand and manage our operations effectively and profitably. To effectively manage future growth, we must continue to expand our operational, financial and management information systems and to train, motivate and manage our work force. There can be no assurance that our operational, financial and management information systems will be adequate to support our future operations. Failure to expand our operational, financial and management information systems will be adequate to a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

In addition, implementation of our growth strategy is subject to risks beyond our control, including competition, market acceptance of new products, changes in economic conditions, our ability to obtain or renew licenses on commercially reasonable terms and our ability to finance increased levels of accounts receivable and inventory necessary to support our sales growth, if any. Accordingly, we cannot assure you that our growth strategy will continue to be implemented successfully.

## We need to be able to acquire and integrate companies and new product lines successfully.

Our growth strategy depends in part upon our ability to acquire companies and new product lines. Future acquisitions will succeed only if we can effectively assess characteristics of potential target companies and product lines, such as:

- attractiveness of products;
- suitability of distribution channels;
- management ability;
- · financial condition and results of operations; and
- the degree to which acquired operations can be integrated with our operations.

We cannot assure you that we can identify attractive acquisition candidates or negotiate acceptable acquisition terms, and our failure to do so may adversely affect our results of operations and our ability to sustain growth. Our acquisition strategy involves a number of risks, each of which could adversely affect our operating results, including:

- difficulties in integrating acquired businesses or product lines, assimilating new facilities and personnel and harmonizing diverse business strategies and methods of operation;
- diversion of management attention from operation of our existing business;
- loss of key personnel from acquired companies; and
- failure of an acquired business to achieve targeted financial results.

## A limited number of customers account for a large portion of our net sales.

Our five largest customers accounted for 57.7% of our net sales in 2003. Except for outstanding purchase orders for specific products, we do not have written contracts with or commitments from any of our customers. A substantial reduction in or termination of orders from any of our largest customers could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations. In addition, pressure by large customers seeking price reductions, financial incentives, changes in other terms of sale or for us to bear the risks and the cost of carrying inventory also could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of our major customers were to experience difficulties in fulfilling their obligations to us, cease doing business with us, significantly reduce the amount of their purchases from us or return substantial amounts of our products, it could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. In addition, the bankruptcy or other lack of success of one or more of our significant retailers could negatively impact our revenues and bad debt expense.



#### We depend on our key personnel.

Our success is largely dependent upon the experience and continued services of Jack Friedman, our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, and Stephen G. Berman, our President and Chief Operating Officer. We cannot assure you that we would be able to find an appropriate replacement for Mr. Friedman or Mr. Berman if the need should arise, and any loss or interruption of Mr. Friedman's or Mr. Berman's services could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

#### We depend on third-party manufacturers.

We depend on approximately twenty third-party manufacturers who develop, provide and use the tools, dies and molds that we own to manufacture our products. However, we have limited control over the manufacturing processes themselves. As a result, any difficulties encountered by the third-party manufacturers that result in product defects, production delays, cost overruns or the inability to fulfill orders on a timely basis could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

We do not have long-term contracts with our third-party manufacturers. Although we believe we could secure other third-party manufacturers to produce our products, our operations would be adversely affected if we lost our relationship with any of our current suppliers or if our current suppliers' operations or sea or air transportation with our overseas manufacturers were disrupted or terminated even for a relatively short period of time. Our tools, dies and molds are located at the facilities of our third-party manufacturers.

Although we do not purchase the raw materials used to manufacture our products, we are potentially subject to variations in the prices we pay our thirdparty manufacturers for products, depending on what they pay for their raw materials.

## We have substantial sales and manufacturing operations outside of the United States subjecting us to risks associated with the outbreak of SARS, as well as risks common to international operations.

We sell products and operate facilities in numerous countries outside the United States. For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003, sales to our international customers comprised approximately 14.2% of our net sales. We expect our sales to international customers to account for a greater portion of our revenues in future fiscal periods. Additionally, we utilize third-party manufacturers located principally in The People's Republic of China, or the PRC, which has been significantly impacted by the outbreak of Severe Acute Respiratory Syndrome, or SARS. The inability of the PRC to effectively control the spread of SARS within its borders or the failure of the medical community to develop a cure for this illness may deplete the workforce of the PRC available to manufacture our products, create barriers to entry into commercial markets for our products manufactured in the PRC and prevent us from sending the requisite monitors and inspectors to the PRC to ensure that our products are being manufactured in accordance with our requirements and specifications. Any of the foregoing may cause the infrastructure of our PRC operations to fail, thereby adversely affecting our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Furthermore, our PRC sales and manufacturing operations are subject to the risks normally associated with international operations, including:

- currency conversion risks and currency fluctuations;
- limitations, including taxes, on the repatriation of earnings;
- political instability, civil unrest and economic instability;
- greater difficulty enforcing intellectual property rights and weaker laws protecting such rights;
- complications in complying with laws in varying jurisdictions and changes in governmental policies;
- greater difficulty and expenses associated with recovering from natural disasters;
- transportation delays and interruptions; and
- the potential imposition of tariffs.

Our reliance on external sources of manufacturing can be shifted, over a period of time, to alternative sources of supply, should such changes be necessary. However, if we were prevented from obtaining products or components for a material portion of our product line due to medical, political, labor or other factors beyond our control, our operations would be disrupted while alternative sources of products were secured. Also, the imposition of trade sanctions by the United States against a class of products imported by us from, or the loss of "normal trade relations" status by China, could significantly increase our cost of products imported from that nation. Because of the importance of our international sales and international sourcing of manufacturing to our business, our financial condition and results of operations could be significantly and adversely affected if any of the risks described above were to occur.

## Our business is subject to extensive government regulation and to potential product liability claims.

Our business is subject to various laws, including the Federal Hazardous Substances Act, the Consumer Product Safety Act, the Flammable Fabrics Act and the rules and regulations promulgated under these acts. These statutes are administered by the Consumer Product Safety Commission (CPSC), which has the authority to remove from the market products that are found to be defective and present a substantial hazard or risk of serious injury or death. The CPSC can require a manufacturer to recall, repair or replace these products under certain circumstances. We cannot assure you that defects in our products will not be alleged or found. Any such allegations or findings could result in:

- product liability claims;
- loss of sales;



- diversion of resources;
- damage to our reputation;
- increased warranty costs; and
- removal of our products from the market.

Any of these results may adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations. There can be no assurance that our product liability insurance will be sufficient to avoid or limit our loss in the event of an adverse outcome of any product liability claim.

#### We depend on our proprietary rights.

We rely on trademark, copyright and trade secret protection, nondisclosure agreements and licensing arrangements to establish, protect and enforce our proprietary rights in our products. The laws of certain foreign countries may not protect intellectual property rights to the same extent or in the same manner as the laws of the United States. We cannot assure you that we or our licensors will be able to successfully safeguard and maintain our proprietary rights. Further, certain parties have commenced legal proceedings or made claims against us based on our alleged patent infringement, misappropriation of trade secrets or other violations of their intellectual property rights. We cannot assure you that other parties will not assert intellectual property claims against us in the future. These claims could divert our attention from operating our business or result in unanticipated legal and other costs, which could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

#### Market conditions and other third-party conduct could negatively impact our margins and implementation of other business initiatives.

Economic conditions, such as rising fuel prices and decreased consumer confidence, may adversely impact our margins. In addition, general economic conditions were significantly and negatively affected by the September 11th terrorist attacks and could be similarly affected by any future attacks. Such a weakened economic and business climate, as well as consumer uncertainty created by such a climate, could adversely affect our sales and profitability. Other conditions, such as the unavailability of electronics components, may impede our ability to manufacture, source and ship new and continuing products on a timely basis. Significant and sustained increases in the price of oil could adversely impact the cost of the raw materials used in the manufacture of our products, such as plastic.

## We may not have the funds necessary to purchase our outstanding convertible notes upon a fundamental change or other purchase date, as required by the indenture governing the notes.

On June 15, 2010, June 15, 2013 and June 15, 2018, holders of our convertible notes may require us to purchase their notes, which repurchase may be made for cash. In addition, holders may also require us to purchase their notes for cash upon the occurrence of certain fundamental changes in our board composition or ownership structure, if we liquidate or dissolve under certain circumstances or if our common stock ceases being quoted on an established over-the-counter trading market in the United States. If we do not have, or have access to, sufficient funds to repurchase the notes, then we could be forced into bankruptcy.



In fact, we expect that we would require third-party financing, but we cannot assure you that we would be able to obtain that financing on favorable terms or at all.

#### Our reported earnings per share may be more volatile because of the contingent conversion provision of our outstanding convertible notes.

Holders of our convertible notes are entitled to convert the notes into our common stock, among other circumstances, if the closing sale price of our common stock for at least 20 trading days in the 30 trading day period ending on the last day of the preceding calendar quarter exceeds 120% of the accreted conversion price per share on the last trading day of such preceding calendar quarter. Until this contingency or another conversion contingency is met, the shares underlying the notes are not included in the calculation of our basic or fully diluted earnings per share. Should this contingency be met, fully diluted earnings per share would be expected to decrease as a result of the inclusion of the underlying shares in the fully diluted earnings per share calculation. Volatility in our stock price could cause this condition to be met in one quarter and not in a subsequent quarter, increasing the volatility of our fully diluted earnings per share.

#### FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

This prospectus includes or incorporates by reference "forward-looking statements" within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. For example, statements included in this prospectus regarding our financial position, business strategy and other plans and objectives for future operations, and assumptions and predictions about future product demand, supply, manufacturing, costs, marketing and pricing factors are all forward-looking statements. When we use words like "intend," "anticipate," "believe," "estimate," "plan," "will" or "expect," we are making forward-looking statements. We believe that the assumptions and expectations reflected in such forward-looking statements are reasonable, based on information available to us on the date hereof, but we cannot assure you that these assumptions and expectations will prove to have been correct or that we will take any action that we may presently be planning. We have disclosed certain important factors that could cause our actual results to differ materially from our current expectations under "Risk Factors" above and elsewhere in this prospectus. You should understand that forward-looking statements made in this prospectus are necessarily qualified by these factors. We are not undertaking to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statement if we obtain information or upon the occurrence of future events or otherwise.

#### **USE OF PROCEEDS**

We will not receive any proceeds from the sale of the shares of common stock by the selling security holders in this offering.

#### SELLING SECURITY HOLDERS

The shares of common stock being offered by Messrs. Lipman and Nimmo were originally issued by us on August 17, 2004 and the shares of common stock being offered by Messrs. Emby, Foreman and Geller were originally issued by us on June 10, 2004, in non-public transactions, which issuances were exempt from the registration requirements of the Securities Act pursuant to Section 4(2) thereof.

As used herein, selling security holders includes their transferees, pledgees or donees or their successors, selling shares received from a named selling security holder after the date of this prospectus. Selling security holders may from time to time offer and sell pursuant to this prospectus any or all of the shares of common stock listed by their name below.

The following table sets forth information with respect to the selling security holders and the number of shares beneficially owned by each selling security holder that may be offered pursuant to this prospectus. The information is based on information provided by or on behalf of the selling security holders on or prior to September 2, 2004. The selling security holders may offer all, some or none of the shares of common stock listed below. In June 2004, we purchased assets of Play Along, Inc., Play Along (Hong Kong) Limited and PA Distribution, Inc. for approximately \$85.01 million consisting of approximately \$70.22 million in cash and 749,005 shares of our common stock. Prior to the acquisition, Messrs. Emby, Foreman and Geller were shareholders, directors and executive officers of those companies and they are currently management level employees of ours, although not executive officers.

In December 2001, we purchased the shares of Kidz Biz Limited and Kidz Biz Far East Limited for approximately \$12.4 million consisting of approximately \$6.4 million in cash and 308,992 shares of our common stock. Prior to the acquisition, Messrs. Lipman and Nimmo were shareholders, directors and executive officers of those companies. Currently, Mr. Lipman is a non-executive, management level employee of ours and Mr. Nimmo is the landlord of Kidz Biz Limited in Surrey, England.

Selling Security Holders	Number of Shares Owned Prior to the Offering	Number of Shares Offered Hereby (1)	Number of Shares Owned After Offering (2)
Charles Emby	299,602	299,602	0
Jay Foreman	299,602	299,602	0
Lawrence Geller	149,801	149,801	0
David Lipman	44,826 <sup>(3)</sup>	19,826	25,000 <sup>(3)</sup>
John Nimmo	5,923	5,923	0

(1) Information regarding the selling security holders may change from time to time. Any such change will be set forth in supplements to this prospectus if and when necessary.

(2) Assumes the sale of all shares offered hereby. The number of shares of common stock beneficially owned by a person or entity is determined under rules promulgated by the United States Securities and Exchange Commission. Under such rules, beneficial ownership includes any shares as to which a person or entity has sole or shared voting power or investment power. Included among the shares owned by such person or entity are any shares which such person or entity has the right to acquire within 60 days after September 1, 2004. The inclusion herein of any shares deemed beneficially owned does not constitute an admission of beneficial ownership of such shares. Except for information in our records and reports filed by a selling shareholder with us, if any, we have no knowledge of whether such selling shareholder owns any other shares of our common stock or options or warrants to purchase shares of our common stock. We believe that none of the selling security holders listed above will own 1% or more of our outstanding shares if it sells all of the shares registered for sale hereby.

(3) Includes 25,000 shares that Mr. Lipman may purchase upon the exercise of certain stock options.

## PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

The selling security holders and their successors, including their transferees, pledgees or donees or their successors, may sell the common stock directly to purchasers or through underwriters, broker-dealers or agents, who may receive compensation in the form of discounts, concessions or commissions from the selling security holders or the purchasers of the common stock. These discounts, concessions or commissions as to any particular underwriter, broker-dealer or agent may be in excess of those customary in the types of transactions involved.

The common stock may be sold in one or more transactions at fixed prices, at prevailing market prices at the time of sale, at prices related to the prevailing market prices, at varying prices determined at the time of sale, or at negotiated prices. These sales may be affected in transactions, which may involve crosses or block transactions:

- on any national securities exchange or U.S. inter-dealer system of a registered national securities association on which the common stock may be listed or quoted at the time of sale;
- in the over-the-counter market;
- · in transactions otherwise than on these exchanges or systems or in the over-the-counter market;
- through the writing of options, whether the options are listed on an options exchange or otherwise; or
- · through the settlement of short sales.

In connection with the sale of the common stock, selling security holders may enter into hedging transactions with broker-dealers or other financial institutions, which may in turn engage in short sales of the common stock positions they assume. The selling security holders may also sell the common stock short and deliver these securities to close out their short positions, or loan or pledge the common stock to broker-dealers that in turn may sell these securities.

The aggregate proceeds to the selling security holders from the sale of the common stock offered by them will be the purchase price of the common stock less discounts and commissions, if any. Each of the selling security holders reserves the right to accept and, together with their agents from time to time, to reject, in whole or in part, any proposed purchase of common stock to be made directly or through agents. We will not receive any of the proceeds from this offering.

In order to comply with the securities laws of some states, if applicable, the common stock may be sold in these jurisdictions only through registered or licensed brokers or dealers. In addition, in some states the common stock may not be sold unless they have been registered or qualified for sale or an exemption from registration or qualification requirements is available and is complied with.

The selling security holders and any underwriters, broker-dealers or agents that participate in the sale of the common stock may be "underwriters" within the meaning of Section 2(11) of the Securities Act. Any discounts, commissions, concessions or profit they earn on any resale of the shares may be deemed to be underwriting discounts and commissions under the Securities Act.

Selling security holders who are "underwriters" within the meaning of Section 2(11) of the Securities Act will be subject to the prospectus delivery requirements of the Securities Act and may be subject to statutory liabilities, including, but not limited to, liability under Sections 11, 12 and 17 of the Securities Act and Rule 10b-5 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. The selling security holders have acknowledged that they understand their obligations to comply with the provisions of the Exchange Act and the rules thereunder relating to stock manipulation, particularly Regulation M.

To our knowledge, there are currently no plans, arrangements or understandings between any of the selling security holders and any underwriter, brokerdealer or agent regarding the sale of the common stock. A selling security holder may not sell any common stock described in this prospectus and may not transfer, devise or gift these securities by other means not described in this prospectus. In addition, any securities covered by this prospectus which qualify for sale pursuant to Rule 144 or Rule 144A of the Securities Act may be sold under Rule 144 or Rule 144A rather than pursuant to this prospectus.

We entered into registration rights agreements for the benefit of holders of the common stock to register their common stock under applicable federal and state securities laws under specific circumstances and at specific times. The registration rights agreements provide for cross-indemnification of the selling security holders and JAKKS (and its directors, officers and controlling persons) against specific liabilities in connection with the offer and sale of the common stock, including liabilities under the Securities Act. We will pay substantially all of the expenses incurred by the selling security holders incident to the offering and sale of the common stock.

Under the registration rights agreements, we are obligated to use our reasonable best efforts to keep the registration statement of which this prospectus is a part effective until the earlier to occur of (i) the date when all of the securities registered hereby are disposed of in accordance with the terms of the shelf registration statement or (ii) for Messrs. Emby, Foreman and Geller, the first anniversary of the effective date of the registration statement of which this prospectus forms a part, and for Messrs. Lipman and Nimmo, the date when their registered shares can be immediately sold to the public without registration or restriction.

Except for Messrs. Lipman and Nimmo, each of the selling security holders has agreed to limit the amount of shares he will offer as follows:

From June 10, 2004 through September 8, 2004 – up to 25% of his registered shares.

From September 9, 2004 through December 7, 2004 – up to 50% of his registered shares, on a cumulative basis.

From December 8, 2004 through March 7, 2005 – up to 75% of his registered shares, on a cumulative basis.

Commencing on March 8, 2005 there will be no limitation on the number of shares a selling security holder may sell.

The above notwithstanding, none of these limitations shall apply in the event the closing sales price of our common stock, as reported on the Nasdaq National Market, exceeds \$25.00 for five consecutive trading days.

Our obligation to keep the registration statement to which this prospectus relates effective is subject to specified, permitted exceptions set forth in the registration rights agreements. In these cases, we may prohibit offers and sales of the shares of common stock pursuant to the registration statement to which this prospectus relates.

When we are notified by any selling security holder that any material arrangement has been entered into with a broker-dealer for the sale of the common stock covered by this prospectus through a block trade, special offering, exchange distribution or secondary distribution or purchase by a broker or dealer, we will file a supplement to this prospectus, if required, pursuant to Rule 424(b) under the Securities Act, or, if appropriate, a post-effective amendment to the registration statement of which this prospectus forms a part, disclosing (a) the name of each such selling security holder and of the participating broker-dealer or dealers, (b) the number of shares of common stock involved, (c) the price at which the common stock was sold, (d) the commissions paid or discounts or concessions allowed to such broker-dealer or dealers, if applicable, and (e) other facts material to the transaction. In addition, when we are notified by any selling security holder that a donee or pledgee intends to sell more than 500 shares, a supplement to this prospectus will be filed.

We may suspend the use of this prospectus if we learn of any event that causes this prospectus to include an untrue statement of a material fact required to be stated in the prospectus or necessary to make the statements in the prospectus not misleading in light of the circumstances then existing. If this type of event occurs, a prospectus supplement or post-effective amendment, if required, will be distributed to each selling security holder. Each selling security holder has agreed not to trade securities from the time the selling security holder receives notice from us of this type of event until the selling security holder receives a prospectus supplement or amendment.

#### LEGAL MATTERS

The legality of the common stock being offered hereby will be passed upon for us by Feder, Kaszovitz, Isaacson, Weber, Skala, Bass & Rhine LLP, New York, New York. Murray L. Skala, a partner of that firm, is one of our directors, an owner of 1,000 shares of our common stock, a holder of options to purchase 82,771 shares of our common stock, and a trustee under a trust that owns 3,186 shares of our common stock.

## INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

Our consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2002 and 2003 and for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2003 incorporated by reference in this prospectus have been audited by PKF, Certified Public Accountants, A Professional Corporation, Los Angeles, California, independent auditors, as stated in their report incorporated by reference herein.

The financial statements of PA Distribution, Inc. and Play Along, Inc. for the twelve-month periods ended March 31, 2003 and 2002 and the nine-month period ended December 31, 2003, incorporated by reference into this prospectus have been audited by Daszkal Bolton LLP, Certified Public Accountants, Boca Raton, Florida, independent auditors, as stated in their report incorporated by reference herein.

The financial statements of Play Along (Hong Kong) Limited for the twelve-month period ended March 31, 2003 and the nine-month period ended December 31, 2003, incorporated by reference into this prospectus have been audited by Grant Thornton, Certified Public Accountants, Hong Kong, independent auditors, as stated in their reports incorporated by reference herein.

## INCORPORATION OF DOCUMENTS BY REFERENCE

This prospectus "incorporates by reference" certain of the reports and other information that we have filed with the SEC under the Exchange Act. This means that we are disclosing important information to you by referring you to those documents. Information filed with the SEC after the date of this prospectus will update and supersede this information. The following documents filed with the SEC are incorporated by reference:

(1) Our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003;

(2) Our Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q for the quarters ended March 31 and June 30, 2004;

(3) Our Current Reports on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on February 17, March 12, April 21, June 16, July 20, August 6, and September 7, 2004;

(4) The description of our common stock contained in our Registration Statement on Form 8-A (File No. 0-28104), filed March 29, 1996, and as incorporated therein by reference to our Registration Statement on Form SB-2 (Reg. No. 333-2048-LA).

Any future filings we make with the SEC under Section 13(a), 13(c), 14 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act (File No. 0-28104) after the date hereof are incorporated by reference until all of the securities offered by this prospectus are sold. Any statement contained in this prospectus or in a document incorporated by reference shall be deemed to be modified or superseded for all purposes to the extent that a statement contained in those documents modifies or supersedes that statement. Any statements so modified or superseded will not be deemed to constitute a part of this prospectus except as so modified or superseded. In addition, any supplement prepared in relation to this prospectus shall be deemed to supersede for all purposes any earlier supplement prepared in relation to this prospectus.

We will provide each person to whom a copy of this prospectus has been delivered, without charge, a copy of any of the documents referred to above as being incorporated by reference. You may request a copy by writing or telephoning Joel M. Bennett, c/o JAKKS Pacific, Inc., 22619 Pacific Coast Highway, Malibu, California, 90265 (telephone: 310-456-7799).

## WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

We are subject to the information requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. In accordance with the Exchange Act, we file reports, proxy statement and other information with the SEC. Such reports, proxy statements and other information can be inspected and copied at prescribed rates at the public reference facilities maintained by the SEC at Judiciary Plaza, 450 Fifth Street, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20549. The SEC also maintains a website at http://ww.sec.gov that contains reports, proxy and information statements and other information. Please call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 for further information on the public reference room. Our common stock is listed on the Nasdaq National Market and reports and information concerning us can also be inspected through such exchange. We intend to furnish our stockholders with annual reports containing audited financial statements and such other periodic reports as we deem appropriate or as may be required by law.

## DISCLOSURE OF COMMISSION POSITION ON INDEMNIFICATION FOR SECURITIES ACT LIABILITIES

Our certificate of incorporation provides that the personal liability of our directors shall be limited to the fullest extent permitted by the provisions of Section 102(b)(7) of the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware ("DGCL"). Section 102(b)(7) of the DGCL generally provides that no director shall be liable personally to a company or its security holders for monetary damages for breach of fiduciary duty as a director, provided that the certificate of incorporation does not eliminate the liability of a director for (1) any breach of the director's duty of loyalty to it or its security holders; (2) acts or omissions not in good faith or that involve intentional misconduct or a knowing violation of law; (3) acts or omissions in respect of certain unlawful dividend payments or stock redemptions or repurchases; or (4) any transaction from which such director derives an improper personal benefit. The effect of this provision is to eliminate the rights of a company and its security holders to recover monetary damages against a director for breach of her or his fiduciary duty of care as a director (including breaches resulting from negligent or grossly negligent behavior) except in the situations described in clauses (1) through (4) above. The limitations summarized above, however, do not affect the ability of a company or its security holders to seek nonmonetary remedies, such as an injunction or rescission, against a director for breach of her or his fiduciary duty.

In addition, our certificate of incorporation provides that we shall, to the fullest extent permitted by Section 145 of the DGCL, indemnify all persons whom it may indemnify pursuant to Section 145 of the DGCL. In general, Section 145 of the DGCL permits us to indemnify our directors, officers, employees or agents or, when so serving at our request, another company who was or is a party or is threatened to be made a party to any proceeding because of his or her position, if he or she acted in good faith and in a manner reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to our best interests and, with respect to any criminal action or proceeding, had no reasonable cause to believe his or her conduct was unlawful.

We maintain a directors' and officers' liability insurance policy covering certain liabilities that may be incurred by any director or officer in connection with the performance of his or her duties and certain liabilities that we may incur, including the indemnification payable to any director or officer. This policy provides for \$30 million in maximum aggregate coverage, including defense costs. We pay the entire premium for such insurance.

Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act of 1933 may be permitted to our directors, officers, or persons controlling us pursuant to the foregoing provisions, we have been informed that in the opinion of the Securities and Exchange Commission, such indemnification is against public policy as expressed in the Securities Act and is therefore unenforceable.

## PART II - INFORMATION NOT REQUIRED IN PROSPECTUS

## Item 14. Other Expenses of Issuance and Distribution

The following table sets forth the various expenses payable by the Registrant in connection with the sale and distribution of the securities being registered hereby. The Registrant is paying all of the selling security holders' expenses related to this offering, except that the selling security holders will pay any applicable broker's commissions and expenses. All amounts are estimated except the Securities and Exchange Commission registration fee.

SEC Registration fee	\$ 1,920
Printing and Edgarization	4,000
Accountants' fees and expenses	20,000
Attorneys' fees and expenses	15,000
Miscellaneous	1,000
Total	\$41,920

## Item 15. Indemnification Of Directors And Officers

The Registrant's Certificate of Incorporation provides that the personal liability of the directors of the Registrant shall be limited to the fullest extent permitted by the provisions of Section 102(b)(7) of the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware ("DGCL"). Section 102(b)(7) of the DGCL generally provides that no director shall be liable personally to the Registrant or its security holders for monetary damages for breach of fiduciary duty as a director, provided that the Certificate of Incorporation does not eliminate the liability of a director for (1) any breach of the director's duty of loyalty to the Registrant or its security holders; (2) acts or omissions not in good faith or that involve intentional misconduct or a knowing violation of law; (3) acts or omissions in respect of certain unlawful dividend payments or stock redemptions or repurchases; or (4) any transaction from which such director derives an improper personal benefit. The effect of this provision is to eliminate the rights of the Registrant and its security holders to recover monetary damages against a director for breach of her or his fiduciary duty of care as a director (including breaches resulting from negligent or grossly negligent behavior) except in the situations described in clauses (1) through (4) above. The limitations summarized above, however, do not affect the ability of the Registrant or its security holders to seek nonmonetary remedies, such as an injunction or rescission, against a director for breach of her or his fiduciary duty.

In addition, the Certificate of Incorporation provides that the Registrant shall, to the fullest extent permitted by Section 145 of the DGCL, indemnify all persons whom it may indemnify pursuant to Section 145 of the DGCL. In general, Section 145 of the DGCL permits the Registrant to indemnify a director, officer, employee or agent of the Registrant or, when so serving at the Registrant's request, another company who was or is a party or is threatened to be made a party to any proceeding because of his or her position, if he or she acted in good faith and in a manner reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests of the Registrant and, with respect to any criminal action or proceeding, had no reasonable cause to believe his or her conduct was unlawful.

## **Table of Contents**

The Registrant maintains a directors' and officers' liability insurance policy covering certain liabilities that may be incurred by any director or officer in connection with the performance of his or her duties and certain liabilities that may be incurred by the Registrant, including the indemnification payable to any director or officer. This policy provides for \$30 million in maximum aggregate coverage, including defense costs. The entire premium for such insurance is paid by the Registrant.

Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act of 1933 may be permitted to directors, officers, or persons controlling the Registrant pursuant to the foregoing provisions, the Registrant has been informed that in the opinion of the Securities and Exchange Commission, such indemnification is against public policy as expressed in the Securities Act and is therefore unenforceable.

## Item 16. Exhibits

Exhibit Number	Description
2.1	Form of certificate evidencing shares of common stock (1)
2.2	Asset Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated as of June 10, 2004, by and among the Registrant (and certain subsidiaries) and Messrs. Emby, Foreman and Geller (and certain affiliated companies) (2)
4.1	Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of June 10, 2004, by and among the Registrant and Messrs. Emby, Foreman and Geller*
5.1	Opinion of Feder, Kaszovitz, Isaacson, Weber, Skala, Bass & Rhine LLP*
23.1	Consent of PKF, Certified Public Accountants, A Professional Corporation*
23.2	Consent of Daszkal Bolton LLP*
23.3	Consent of Grant Thornton, Certified Public Accountants, Hong Kong*
23.4	Consent of Feder, Kaszovitz, Isaacson, Weber, Skala, Bass & Rhine LLP (included in Exhibit 5.1)*

<sup>24.1</sup> Power of Attorney\*

- (1) Filed on May 1, 1996 as an exhibit to the Company's Registration Statement on Form SB-2 (Reg. No. 333-2048-LA), and incorporated herein by reference.
- (2) Filed on June 16, 2004 as an exhibit to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K.

## Item 17. Undertakings

The undersigned registrant hereby undertakes:

(1) To file, during any period in which offers or sales are being made, a post-effective amendment to this registration statement

<sup>\*</sup> Filed herewith.

(i) to include any prospectus required by Section 10(a)(3) of the Securities Act of 1933,

(ii) to reflect in the prospectus any facts or events arising after the effective date of the registration statement (or the most recent post-effective amendment thereof) which, individually or in the aggregate, represent a fundamental change in the information set forth in the registration statement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any increase or decrease in volume of securities offered (if the total dollar value of securities offered would not exceed that which was registered) and any deviation from the low or high end of the estimated maximum offering range may be reflected in the form of prospectus filed with the Commission pursuant to Rule 424(b) if, in the aggregate, the changes in volume and price represent no more than a 20% change in the maximum aggregate offering price set forth in the "Calculation of Registration Fee" table in the effective registration statement, and

(iii) to include any material information with respect to the plan of distribution not previously disclosed in the registration statement or any material change to such information in the registration statement.

Provided, however, that paragraphs 1(i) and 1(ii) above do not apply if the registration statement on Form S-3, Form S-8 or Form F-3, and the information required to be included in a post-effective amendment by those paragraphs, is contained in periodic reports filed with or furnished to the Commission by the registrant pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 that are incorporated by reference in the registration statement.

(2) That, for the purpose of determining any liability under the Securities Act of 1933, each such post-effective amendment shall be deemed to be a new registration statement relating to the securities offered therein, and the offering of such securities at that time shall be deemed to be the initial bona fide offering thereof.

(3) To remove from registration by means of a post-effective amendment any of the securities being registered which remain unsold at the termination of the offering.

The undersigned registrant hereby undertakes that, for purposes of determining any liability under the Securities Act of 1933, each filing of the registrant's annual report pursuant to Section 13(a) or Section 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (and, where applicable, each filing of an employee benefit plan's annual report pursuant to Section 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934) that is incorporated by reference in the registration statement shall be deemed to be a new registration statement relating to the securities offered therein, and the offering of such securities as that time shall be deemed to be the initial bona fide offering thereof.

The undersigned registrant hereby undertakes to deliver or cause to be delivered with the prospectus, to each person to whom the prospectus is sent or given, the latest annual report to security holders that is incorporated by reference in the prospectus and furnished pursuant to and meeting the requirements of Rule 14a-3 or Rule 14c-3 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and, where interim financial information required to be presented by Article 3 of Regulation S-X is not set forth in the prospectus, to deliver, or cause to be delivered to each

person to whom the prospectus is sent or given, the latest quarterly report that is specifically incorporated by reference in the prospectus to provide such interim financial information.

Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act of 1933 may be permitted to directors, officers and controlling persons of the registrant pursuant to the foregoing provisions, or otherwise, the registrant has been advised that in the opinion of the Securities and Exchange Commission such indemnification is against public policy as expressed in the Act and is, therefore, unenforceable. In the event that a claim for indemnification against such liabilities (other than the payment by the registrant of expenses incurred or paid by a director, officer or controlling person of the registrant in the successful defense of any action, suit or proceeding) is asserted by such director, officer or controlling person in connection with the securities being registered, the registrant will, unless in the opinion of its counsel the matter has been settled by controlling precedent, submit to a court of appropriate jurisdiction the question whether such indemnification by it is against public policy as expressed in the Act and will be governed by the final adjudication of such issue.

## SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, the Registrant certifies that it has reasonable grounds to believe that it meets all of the requirements for filing on Form S-3 and has duly caused this Registration Statement to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of Malibu, State of California, on September 7, 2004.

## JAKKS PACIFIC, INC.

By: /s/ Jack Friedman Jack Friedman Chairman

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, this Registration Statement has been signed below by the following persons in the capacities and on the dates indicated:

Signature	Title	Date
/s/ Jack Friedman	Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Officer)	September 7, 2004
Jack Friedman /s/ Joel M. Bennett	Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)	September 7, 2004
Joel M. Bennett /s/ Stephen G. Berman	Director	September 7, 2004
Stephen G. Berman /s/ David C. Blatte	Director	September 7, 2004
David C. Blatte /s/ Robert E. Glick	Director	September 7, 2004
Robert E. Glick /s/ Michael G. Miller	Director	September 7, 2004
Michael G. Miller /s/ Murray L. Skala	Director	September 7, 2004
Murray L. Skala		
	28	

## Exhibit Index

Exhibit	
Number	Description

- 2.1 Form of certificate evidencing shares of common stock (1)
- 2.2 Asset Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated as of June 10, 2004, by and among the Registrant (and certain subsidiaries) and Messrs. Emby, Foreman and Geller (and certain affiliated companies) (2)
- 4.1 Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of June 10, 2004, by and among the Registrant and Messrs. Emby, Foreman and Geller\*
- 5.1 Opinion of Feder, Kaszovitz, Isaacson, Weber, Skala, Bass & Rhine LLP\*
- 23.1 Consent of PKF, Certified Public Accountants, A Professional Corporation\*
- 23.2 Consent of Daszkal Bolton LLP\*
- 23.3 Consent of Grant Thornton, Certified Public Accountants, Hong Kong\*
- 23.4 Consent of Feder, Kaszovitz, Isaacson, Weber, Skala, Bass & Rhine LLP (included in Exhibit 5.1)\*
- 24.1 Power of Attorney\*

- (1) Filed on May 1, 1996 as an exhibit to the Company's Registration Statement on Form SB-2 (Reg. No. 333-2048-LA), and incorporated herein by reference.
- (2) Filed on June 16, 2004 as an exhibit to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K.

<sup>\*</sup> Filed herewith.

## REGISTRATION RIGHTS AGREEMENT

THIS REGISTRATION RIGHTS AGREEMENT (this "Agreement") dated as of June 10, 2004 by and among JAKKS Pacific, Inc., a Delaware corporation ("JAKKS"), and those Persons identified on Schedule I hereto (each, a "Stockholder").

#### WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, JPI/V Acquisition Corp. (the "Company") and JP-PA (HK) Limited ("JAKKS HK") are acquiring substantially all of the assets of Play Along, Inc. ("Play Along"), PA Distribution, Inc. ("PA Distribution") and Play Along (Hong Kong) Limited ("PA Hong Kong" and, together with Play Along and PA Distribution, the "Play Along Companies"), pursuant to an asset purchase and sale agreement, dated as of June 10, 2004, by and among JAKKS Pacific, Inc. ("JAKKS"), the Company, JAKKS HK, Play Along, PA Distribution, PA Hong Kong and each of the Stockholders (the "Purchase Agreement") in exchange for consideration consisting of cash and shares of JAKKS common stock, par value \$0.001 per share ("JAKKS");

WHEREAS, each of the Play Along Companies intend to promptly distribute to the Stockholders in accordance with their respective equity interests the consideration received from the transactions contemplated by the Purchase Agreement, including the shares of JAKKS Common Stock;

WHEREAS, the Stockholders desire to provide for the possible sale of their shares of JAKKS Common Stock subject hereto in the public market after the above-described distribution and have required, as a condition precedent to the Closing of the transactions contemplated by the Purchase Agreement, that JAKKS commit to register such shares under the applicable securities laws;

WHEREAS, JAKKS has agreed to enter into this Agreement with the Stockholders, subject to the Closing of the transactions contemplated by the Purchase Agreement; and

WHEREAS, it is intended by JAKKS and the Stockholders that this Agreement shall become effective immediately upon the issuance of JAKKS Common Stock pursuant to the Purchase Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual covenants hereinafter set forth, the parties hereto hereby agree as follows:

1. Certain Definitions.

In addition to other capitalized terms defined elsewhere herein, the following capitalized terms shall have the following meanings:

(a) "Agreement" means this Registration Rights Agreement, as amended or supplemented.

EX-4.1-1

(b) "Blue Sky Filing" means any registration statement, notification or other Notice required to be filed, given or made pursuant to any Blue Sky Law in connection with any offering of the Registrable Securities.

(c) "Blue Sky Laws" means the laws of any state, the District of Columbia, or any territory or other jurisdiction in the United States governing the purchase and/or sale of securities in such jurisdiction.

(d) "Commission" means the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission.

(e) "Exchange Act" means the U.S. Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder.

(f) "JAKKS Securities Claims" has the meaning provided for in Section 4(b) below.

(g) "Notice" means any notice given to, or any declaration, filing, registration or recordation made, with any Person.

(h) "Order" means any judgment, order, writ, decree, award, directive, ruling or decision of any Governmental Entity.

(i) "Person" means any natural person, corporation, joint stock company, limited liability company, partnership, joint venture, association, trust, Government Entity, or any group of the foregoing acting in concert.

(j) "Proceeding" means any action, suit, arbitration, audit, investigation or other proceeding, at law or in equity, before or by any Government Entity.

(k) "Register," "registered," "registration" and "registration statement" shall refer to a registration of securities to be offered and sold under a registration statement filed with the Commission pursuant to the Securities Act.

(1) "Registrable Securities" means the shares of JAKKS Common Stock issued and delivered to the Play Along Companies in connection with the Closing of the transactions contemplated by the Purchase Agreement and subsequently distributed to the Stockholders, as set forth on Schedule I hereto (or any securities into which such shares are convertible or for which such shares are exchangeable pursuant to any capital reorganization or reclassification of JAKKS).

(m) "Securities Act" means the U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder.

(n) "Stockholders' Securities Claims" has the meaning provided for in Section 4(a) below.

Capitalized terms used, but not otherwise defined, herein shall have the respective meanings assigned to them in the Purchase Agreement.

#### 2. Registration Rights.

(a) Registration Statement. JAKKS shall prepare and file with the Commission, within ninety (90) days after the later of (i) the Closing Date and (ii) the distribution of the Registrable Securities by the Play Along Companies to the Stockholders, a Registration Statement on Form S-3 covering the Registrable Securities and shall use commercially reasonable efforts to cause such registration statement to be declared effective by the Commission within one hundred fifty (150) days after the Effective Date, or as soon as practicable thereafter, so as to permit, when such registration statement becomes effective, the sale of the Registrable Securities in conformity with Section 5 of the Securities Act. JAKKS, in its sole discretion, may include in the registration statement covering the Registrable Securities any issued or authorized but unissued securities of JAKKS for sale by JAKKS or its other security holders. JAKKS, however, shall not be obligated to file such registration statement or effect any registration of the Registrable Securities pursuant to this Section 2 if JAKKS shall furnish to the Stockholders a certificate signed by the President of JAKKS stating that, in the good faith judgment of JAKKS' board of directors, it would be materially adverse to JAKKS and its stockholders for such registration statement to be filed or such registration to be effected at that time, in which event JAKKS shall have the right to defer the filing of the registration statement for a period of not more than ninety (90) days. Until the requirements of this paragraph (a) have been satisfied by JAKKS, JAKKS agrees to maintain its eligibility to file a Registration Statement on form S-3 covering the Registrable Securities, provided that the rules governing the eligibility to use Form S-3 are not changed in any material respect from those in effect as of the date hereof.

(b) Preparation, Filing and Maintenance of Registration Statement. With respect to the registration statement to be prepared by JAKKS under this Agreement, JAKKS shall, at its sole expense, as expeditiously as reasonably practicable:

(i) prepare and file with the Commission a registration statement necessary to permit the sale of the Registrable Securities in the public securities markets upon the effectiveness of such registration statement, and such amendments and supplements to such registration statement and the prospectus included therein as may be necessary, to the extent reasonably practicable, to cause such registration statement to be declared effective by the Commission

(ii) maintain the effectiveness of such registration statement for so long as may be reasonably necessary or advisable to enable the Stockholders to consummate the disposition of the Registrable Securities; provided, that, JAKKS shall not be required to keep such registration in effect at any time after the earlier to occur of (a) the disposition of the Registrable Securities in accordance with the manner of disposition set forth in the registration statement relating thereto, or (b) twelve months after the date such registration statement becomes effective;

(iii) furnish to each Stockholder such number of conformed copies of such registration statement and of each amendment or supplement thereto (in each case excluding all exhibits and documents incorporated by reference therein) and such number of

copies of any prospectus included in such registration statement as such Stockholder may reasonably request in order to facilitate the sale of the Registrable Securities in the public securities markets;

(iv) register or qualify the Registrable Securities under the Blue Sky Laws of each state governing the purchase or sale of securities as each Stockholder may reasonably request, keep such registration or qualification in effect for so long as such registration statement remains in effect and take any other action that may be reasonably necessary or advisable to enable the Stockholders to consummate the disposition in such states of the Registrable Securities; provided that JAKKS shall not be required to keep such registration or qualification in effect at any time after the earlier to occur of (a) the disposition of the Registrable Securities in accordance with the manner of disposition set forth in the registration statement relating thereto, or (b) twelve months after the date such registration statement becomes effective; and provided further that JAKKS shall not be required (A) to qualify generally to do business in any jurisdiction where it would not otherwise be required to qualify, (B) subject itself to taxation in any such jurisdiction, or (C) consent to general service of process in any such jurisdiction;

 $(\nu)$  notify each Stockholder promptly when the registration statement or any amendment thereto has been filed and when it has become effective; and

(vi) cause all of the Registrable Securities covered by the registration statement to be listed on each securities exchange, or designated for inclusion in each automated interdealer quotation system, on which the JAKKS Common Stock is then listed or included.

(c) Limitations on Registrations. In addition to its rights under Section 2(a) above, JAKKS may delay the filing, or the making of a request for the acceleration of effectiveness, of a registration statement pursuant to this Section 2 or withdraw or suspend the effectiveness of a registration statement covering the Registrable Securities that has become effective if, in the good faith judgment of JAKKS' board of directors, JAKKS would be required to include in such registration statement or the prospectus included therein (or in an amendment or supplement thereto) material information that at that time could not be publicly disclosed without interfering with any financing, acquisition, corporate reorganization or other material development or transaction then pending or as to which JAKKS has taken substantive steps to structure or negotiate. JAKKS shall promptly make such filing or amendment as is reasonably necessary to complete, restore or reinstate such registration statement (or the effectiveness thereof) when the conditions leading to such delay, suspension or withdrawal no longer apply.

(d) Stockholders' Obligations. It is a condition precedent to JAKKS' obligation to register any Registrable Securities pursuant hereto that (a) the Stockholders cooperate with JAKKS in the preparation of the Registration Statement (or any amendment thereto), including providing any information with respect to the Stockholders required to be included therein, and (b) in the case of an underwritten public offering, the terms and conditions of the underwriting agreement or any related agreement applicable to or affecting JAKKS shall be reasonably acceptable to JAKKS.

3. Preparation; Reasonable Investigation. In connection with the preparation and filing of the registration statement and any amendments thereto and any Blue Sky Filing, JAKKS shall give each Stockholder and its counsel, accountant and other advisors the opportunity to review, in each case, a reasonable time prior to its filing, the registration statement, each prospectus included therein or filed with the Commission, each document incorporated by reference therein and each amendment thereof or supplement thereto and any related Blue Sky Filing in order to verify the accuracy of any factual information concerning the Stockholders. JAKKS shall pay for all registration and filing fees, printing expenses and fees and disbursements of JAKKS' counsel and JAKKS' accountants in connection with the preparation, review and filing of the registration statement or any related Blue Sky Filing pursuant to this Agreement; provided, however, that the Stockholders shall pay underwriting discounts and commissions applicable to the sale of the Registrable Securities and any advisory or professional fees incurred on their own behalf.

#### 4. Indemnification.

(a) Stockholders' Indemnity. Each Stockholder, jointly and severally, shall indemnify and defend JAKKS and each stockholder, director, officer, employee and agent of JAKKS against, and hold each of them harmless from, any loss, liability, obligation, damage or expense (including reasonable attorneys' fees and disbursements) which any of them may suffer or incur incidental to any claim or any Proceeding against any of them arising out of, based upon or resulting from an untrue statement or alleged untrue statement of a material fact contained in, or omission or alleged omission of a material fact from, the registration statement, any preliminary prospectus or final prospectus contained therein, or any amendment or supplement thereto, or any document incidental to the registration or qualification of the Registrable Securities that is required to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements therein not misleading or, with respect to any prospectus, necessary to make the statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading, which statement or omission is made in reliance upon and in conformity with written information furnished to JAKKS by the Stockholders for use in the preparation thereof, or any violation by any Stockholder or its Affiliates of the Securities Act or Blue Sky Laws applicable to them and relating to action or inaction required of such Stockholder or its Affiliates in connection with such registration or qualification under such Blue Sky Laws ("Stockholders' Securities Claims").

(b) JAKKS' Indemnity. JAKKS shall indemnify and defend each Stockholder and hold each of them harmless from, any loss, liability, obligation, damage or expense (including reasonable attorneys' fees and disbursements) which any of them may suffer or incur incidental to any claim or any Proceeding against any of them arising out of, based upon or resulting from an untrue statement or alleged untrue statement of a material fact contained in, or omission or alleged omission of a material fact from, the registration statement, any preliminary prospectus or final prospectus contained therein, or any amendment or supplement thereto, or any document prepared and/or furnished by JAKKS incidental to the registration or qualification of the Registrable Securities that is required to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements therein not misleading or, with respect to any prospectus, necessary to make the statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading, or any violation by JAKKS or its Affiliates of the Securities Act or Blue Sky Laws applicable to them and relating to action or inaction required of JAKKS or its Affiliates in connection with

such registration or qualification under such Blue Sky Laws ("JAKKS' Securities Claims"); provided, however, that JAKKS shall not be liable in any such case to the extent that such Securities Claims arise out of or are based upon (A) an untrue statement or alleged untrue statement of a material fact contained in, or omission or alleged omission of a material fact from, the registration statement, such preliminary prospectus or such prospectus or such amendment or supplement or any document incident to the registration or qualification of the Registrable Securities made in reliance upon and in conformity with written information furnished to it by the Stockholders or any other holder of such Registrable Securities or their respective agents for use in the preparation thereof or (B) the Stockholders' or any other holder of such Registrable Securities or their respective agents' failure to deliver a copy of the registration statement or prospectus or any amendments or supplements thereto after JAKKS has furnished the Stockholders with a sufficient number of copies of the same.

(c) Claims Procedure. Promptly after Notice to an indemnified party of any claim or the commencement of any Proceeding by a third party involving any loss, liability, obligation, damage or expense referred to in Section 4(a) or 4(b), such indemnified party shall, if a claim for indemnification in respect thereof is to be made against an indemnifying party, give written Notice to the latter of the commencement of such claim or Proceeding, setting forth in reasonable detail the nature thereof and the basis upon which such party seeks indemnification hereunder; provided that the failure of any indemnified party to give such Notice shall not relieve the indemnifying party of its obligations under such Section, except to the extent that the indemnifying party is actually prejudiced by the failure to give such Notice. In case any such Proceeding is brought against an indemnified party, and provided that proper Notice is duly given, the indemnifying party shall assume and control the defense thereof insofar as such Proceeding involves any loss, liability, obligation, damage or expense in respect of which indemnification may be sought hereunder, with counsel selected by the indemnifying party (and reasonably satisfactory to such indemnified party), and, after Notice from the indemnifying party to such indemnified party of its assumption of the defense thereof, the indemnifying party shall not be liable to such indemnified party for any legal or other expenses subsequently incurred by the indemnified party in connection with the defense thereof (but the indemnified party shall have the right, but not the obligation, to participate at its own cost and expense in such defense by counsel of its own choice) or for any amounts paid or foregone by the indemnified party as a result of the settlement or compromise thereof (without the written consent of the indemnifying party), except that, if both the indemnifying party and the indemnified party are named as parties or subject to such Proceeding and either such party reasonably determines with advice of counsel that a material conflict of interest between such parties may exist in respect of such Proceeding, the indemnifying party may decline to assume the defense on behalf of the indemnified party or the indemnified party may retain the defense on its own behalf, and, in either such case, after Notice to such effect is duly given hereunder to the other party, the indemnifying party shall be relieved of its obligation to assume the defense on behalf of the indemnified party, but shall be required to pay any reasonable legal or other expenses, including without limitation reasonable attorneys' fees and disbursements incurred by the indemnified party in such defense; provided, however, that the indemnifying party shall not be liable for such expenses on account of more than one separate firm of attorneys (and, if necessary, local counsel) at any time representing such indemnified party in connection with any Proceeding or separate Proceedings in the same jurisdiction arising out of or based upon substantially the same allegations or circumstances. If the indemnifying party shall assume the defense of any such Proceeding, the indemnified party

shall cooperate fully with the indemnifying party and shall appear and give testimony, produce documents and other tangible evidence, allow the indemnifying party access to the books and records of the indemnified party and otherwise assist the indemnifying party in conducting such defense. No indemnifying party shall, without the consent of the indemnified party, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, consent to entry of any judgment or enter into any settlement or compromise in respect of any claim or Proceeding which (i) does not include as an unconditional term thereof the giving by the claimant or plaintiff to such indemnified party of a release from all liability in respect of such claim or Proceeding and (ii) involves solely monetary damages (and not injunctive or other equitable relief or any admission of guilt or fault). Provided that proper Notice is duly given, if the indemnifying party shall fail promptly and diligently to assume the defense thereof, if and in the manner required hereunder, the indemnified party may respond to, contest and defend against such Proceeding (but the indemnifying party shall have the right to participate at its own cost and expense in such defense by counsel of its own choice) and may make in good faith any compromise or settlement with respect thereto, and recover the entire cost and expense thereof, including without limitation reasonable attorneys' fees and disbursements and all amounts paid or foregone as a result of such Proceeding, or the settlement or compromise thereof, from the indemnifying party. Any indemnification required to be made hereunder shall be made by periodic payments of the amount thereof during the course of the investigation or defense, as and when bills or invoices are received or loss, liability, obligation, damage or expense is actually suffered or incurred.

(d) Limitations.

(i) Any other provision hereof notwithstanding, no indemnified party shall be entitled to any indemnification under this Agreement to the extent that it actually receives or is entitled to receive any amount in respect of any loss, liability, obligation, damage or expense from other sources, including without limitation insurance or third-party indemnity; provided that such indemnified party shall not be required to commence any Proceeding to collect any such amount.

(ii) The indemnification obligations under this Agreement are independent of any other indemnification obligations that any of the parties hereto may have to one another under any other agreement between or among them.

5. Covenants of the Stockholders.

(a) Each Stockholder agrees, and shall cause any permitted assignee to agree, that during the twelve (12) month period following the Closing Date, he (and any permitted assignee(s)) shall be permitted to sell: (i) no more than twenty five percent (25%) of his Registrable Securities during the first 90 days following the Closing Date; (ii) no more than fifty percent (50%) of his Registrable Securities during the next 90 days (days 91-180) following the Closing Date; (iii) no more than seventy five percent (75%) of his Registrable Securities during the next 90 days (days 181-270) following the Closing Date; and (iv) all or any lesser percentage of his Registrable Securities during the next 90 days (days 271-360) following the Closing Date. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the restrictions set forth in this Section 5(a) shall not apply in any 90-day period in which the closing sale price of the JAKKS Common Stock, as reported on the Nasdaq National Market, has exceeded \$25.00 for five (5) consecutive trading days.

(b) Each Stockholder agrees, and shall cause any permitted assignee to agree, that, at the request of the underwriters managing a registered public offering, such Stockholder shall not offer, sell, contract to sell or otherwise dispose of any JAKKS Common Stock, or any securities convertible into or exchangeable or exercisable for JAKKS Common Stock, during the 15-day period prior to, and the 90-day period beginning on, the effective date of the underwritten registration; provided, that, any Registrable Securities then owned by each Stockholder (and any permitted assignee(s)) are included in that underwritten public offering, without any right of cut-back on the part of the managing underwriters. In order to ensure compliance with the provisions of this Section 5(b), JAKKS agrees to notify each Stockholder as to the status and proposed effective date of any registration statement of JAKKS that is filed with the Commission.

6. Miscellaneous.

(a) Limitation of Authority. Except as expressly provided herein, no provision hereof shall be deemed to create any partnership, joint venture or joint enterprise or association among the parties hereto, or to authorize or to empower any party hereto to act on behalf of, obligate or bind any other party hereto.

(b) Fees and Expenses. Except as otherwise provided herein, each party hereto shall bear such fees and expenses as may be incurred by it in connection with this Agreement.

(c) Notices. All notices which are required by or may be given pursuant to the terms of this Agreement must be in writing and must be delivered personally, sent by certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, facsimile (with written confirmation of transmission) provided, that, notice is also sent via first class, postage prepaid, mail, or sent for next-day delivery by a nationally recognized overnight delivery service as follows:

to JAKKS:

22619 Pacific Coast Highway, Suite 250 Malibu, California 90265 Attn: President Fax: (310) 456-7799

with a copy to:

Feder, Kaszovitz, Isaacson, Weber, Skala, Bass & Rhine LLP
750 Lexington Avenue
New York, New York 10022
Attn: Geoffrey A. Bass, Esq.
Fax: (212) 888-7776

to any Stockholder at his address on Schedule I

with a copy to:

Sonnenschein Nath & Rosenthal LLP 8000 Sears Tower Chicago, Illinois 60606 Attn: Kenneth G. Kolmin, Esq. Fax: (312) 876-7934

Any of the addresses set forth above may be changed from time to time by written notice from the party requesting the change.

Such notices and other communications will be treated for all purposes of this Agreement as being effective immediately if delivered personally or by facsimile (with written confirmation of transmission) or five days after mailing by certified mail, return receipt requested, first class postage prepaid, or one day after deposit for next business day delivery by a nationally recognized overnight delivery service.

(d) Amendment. Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, no amendment of this Agreement shall be valid or effective, unless in writing and signed by or on behalf of the parties hereto.

(e) Waiver. No course of dealing or omission or delay on the part of any party hereto in asserting or exercising any right hereunder shall constitute or operate as a waiver of any such right. No waiver of any provision hereof shall be effective, unless in writing and signed by or on behalf of the party to be charged therewith. No waiver shall be deemed a continuing waiver or waiver in respect of any other or subsequent breach or default, unless expressly so stated in writing.

(f) Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by, and interpreted and enforced in accordance with, the laws of the State of New York without regard to principles of choice of law or conflict of laws.

(g) Remedies. In the event of any actual or prospective breach or default by any party hereto, any other party hereto shall be entitled to equitable relief from any court of competent jurisdiction, including remedies in the nature of rescission, injunction and specific performance. All remedies hereunder are cumulative and not exclusive, and nothing herein shall be deemed to prohibit or limit any party from pursuing any other remedy or relief available at law or in equity for such actual or prospective breach or default, including the recovery of damages; provided, however, that the indemnification provisions of Section 4 shall be the sole and exclusive remedy, as among the parties hereto, with respect to any claim for monetary damages under this Agreement.

(h) Severability. The provisions hereof are severable and in the event that any provision of this Agreement shall be determined to be invalid or unenforceable in any respect by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining provisions hereof shall not be affected, but shall, subject to the discretion of such court, remain in full force and effect, and any invalid or unenforceable provision shall be deemed, without further action on the part of the parties hereto, amended and limited to the extent necessary to render the same valid and enforceable.

(i) Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original and which together shall constitute one and the same agreement.

(j) Further Assurances. Each party hereto agrees to cooperate fully with the other parties in connection with preparing and filing any Notices or documents in connection with any registration hereunder. Each party hereto shall promptly execute, deliver, file or record such agreements, instruments, certificates and other documents and perform such other and further acts as any other party hereto may reasonably request or as may otherwise be reasonably necessary or proper, to effect any such registration.

(k) Binding Effect. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns. This Agreement is not intended, and shall not be deemed, to create or confer any right or interest for the benefit of any Person not a party hereto.

(1) Assignment. Except for personal estate planning purposes on the part of any Stockholder (which planning JAKKS shall be notified of), this Agreement, and each right, interest and obligation hereunder, may not be assigned by any party hereto without the prior written consent of the other parties hereto, and any purported assignment without such consent shall be void and without effect.

(m) Titles and Captions. The titles and captions of the Articles and Sections of this Agreement are for convenience of reference only and do not in any way define or interpret the intent of the parties or modify or otherwise affect any of the provisions hereof.

(n) Grammatical Conventions. Whenever the context so requires, each pronoun or verb used herein shall be construed in the singular or the plural sense and each capitalized term defined herein and each pronoun used herein shall be construed in the masculine, feminine or neuter sense.

(o) References. The terms "herein," "hereto," "hereof," and "hereunder," and other terms of similar import, refer to this Agreement as a whole, and not to any Section or other part hereof.

(p) No Presumptions. Each party hereto acknowledges that it has participated, with the advice of counsel, in the preparation of this Agreement. No party hereto is entitled to any presumption with respect to the interpretation of any provision hereof or the resolution of any alleged ambiguity herein based on any claim that any other party hereto drafted or controlled the drafting of this Agreement.

(q) Exhibits and Schedules. The Exhibits and Schedules hereto are an integral part of this Agreement and are incorporated in their entirety herein by this reference.

(r) Entire Agreement. This Agreement embodies the entire agreement of the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersedes all prior and contemporaneous agreements, commitments or arrangements, whether oral or written, relating thereto.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, JAKKS, by its duly authorized officers, and the Stockholders have duly executed this Agreement as of the date first above written.

JAKKS PACIFIC, INC. By: Jack Friedman Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Charles Emby Jay Foreman Lawrence Geller

NAME	NUMBER OF SHARES
Emby, Charles 7303 Ballantrae Lane Boca Raton, Florida 33496	299,602
Foreman, Jay 3700 South Ocean Boulevard, #1010 Highland Beach, Florida 33487	299,602
Geller, Lawrence 3730 N.E. 24th Avenue Lighthouse Point, Florida 33064	149,801

S-I-1

### [FEDER KASZOVITZ ISAACSON WEBER SKALA BASS & RHINE LLP LETTERHEAD]

September 7, 2004

JAKKS Pacific, Inc. 22619 Pacific Coast Highway, Ste. 250 Malibu, CA 90265-5080

### Gentlemen:

We have acted as counsel for JAKKS Pacific, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the "Company"), in connection with the preparation and filing by the Company of a registration statement on Form S-3 (the "Registration Statement") under the Securities Act of 1933, relating to the public offering of 774,754 shares of common stock, par value \$.001 per share, of the Company (the "Shares"). Capitalized terms are used herein as defined in the Registration Statement.

We have examined the Registration Statement, originals or copies, certified or otherwise identified to our satisfaction, of the Company's certificate of incorporation and by-laws, records of corporate proceedings, including minutes of meetings and written consents of the board of directors and stockholders, certificates of public officials and officers or other authorized representatives of the Company, and such other certificates, instruments and documents, and we have made such examination of law, as we have deemed necessary to form the basis of the opinion expressed below. In such examination, we have assumed the genuineness of all signatures, the authenticity of all documents submitted to us as originals and the conformity to authentic originals of all documents submitted to us as copies thereof.

Based on the foregoing, we are of the opinion that the Shares have been duly authorized and validly issued and are fully paid and nonassessable.

We hereby consent to the reference to this firm in the Registration Statement under the caption Legal Matters and to the filing of this opinion as an exhibit to the Registration Statement.

In rendering the foregoing opinion, we do not express an opinion concerning any laws other than the laws of the State of New York, the general corporate law of the State of Delaware and the federal laws of the United States of America.

Very truly yours,

/s/ FEDER, KASZOVITZ, ISAACSON WEBER, SKALA, BASS & RHINE LLP

E-5.1-1

## CONSENT OF REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statement on Form S-3 of JAKKS Pacific, Inc. of our report dated February 16, 2004, on our audits of the consolidated financial statements of JAKKS Pacific, Inc. as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, and for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2003 and to the incorporation by reference of our report in any registration statement relating to the offering to which this Registration Statement relates filed pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. We also hereby consent to the reference to our firm as "Experts" in the Registration Statement.

/s/ PKF PKF Certified Public Accountants A Professional Corporation

Los Angeles, California September 3, 2004

E 23.1-1

# CONSENT OF REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statement on Form S-3 JAKKS Pacific, Inc. of our reports dated February 13, 2004, on our audits of the financial statements of each of Play Along, Inc. and PA Distribution, Inc. as of the twelve-month periods ended March 31, 2003 and 2002 and for the nine-month period ended December 31, 2003, and to the incorporation by reference of our reports in any registration statement relating to the offering to which this Registration Statement relates filed pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. We also hereby consent to the reference to our firm as "Experts" in the Registration Statement.

/s/ Daszkal Bolton LLP Daszkal Bolton LLP Certified Public Accountants

Boca Raton, Florida September 3, 2004

E 23.2-1

# CONSENT OF REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We have issued our reports dated June 6, 2003 and February 19, 2004, accompanying the financial statements of Play Along (Hong Kong) Limited on Form 8-K/A for the year ended March 31, 2003 and nine months ended December 31, 2003 respectively. We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference of said reports in the Registration Statement of Jakks Pacific, Inc. and Subsidiaries on Form S-3.

/s/ Grant Thornton Grant Thornton Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong September 3, 2004

E 23.3-1

## POWER OF ATTORNEY

Each of the undersigned hereby constitutes and appoints Jack Friedman, Stephen G. Berman and Joel M. Bennett, and each of them, as his attorneys-in-fact, with full power of substitution and resubstitution, to execute in his name, place and stead, individually and in each capacity stated below, one or more amendments (including without limitation post-effective amendments) to this registration statement, any related Rule 462(b) registration statement and any other documents related thereto, to file the same (and any exhibit thereto) with the Commission and to take any other action to effect the registration under the Securities Act of 1933 of common stock of the registrant subject thereto, as the attorney-in-fact acting in the premises deems appropriate as fully for all intents and purposes as he might or could do in person, hereby ratifying and confirming all that said attorney-in-fact, or his substitute or substitutes, acting severally, may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

Signature	Title	Date
/s/ Jack Friedman	Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (Principal	September 7, 2004
Jack Friedman	Executive Officer)	
/s/ Joel M. Bennett	Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial and	September 7, 2004
Joel M. Bennett	Accounting Officer)	
/s/ Stephen G. Berman	Director	September 7, 2004
Stephen G. Berman		
/s/ David C. Blatte	Director	September 7, 2004
David C. Blatte		
/s/ Robert E. Glick	Director	September 7, 2004
Robert E. Glick		
/s/ Michael G. Miller	Director	September 7, 2004
Michael G. Miller		
/s/ Murray L. Skala	Director	September 7, 2004
Murray L. Skala		

E 23.4-1